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had been withdrawn from publication, and he was advised by the Dean of his University that it

was appropriate to withdraw those papers from his publication list.! Second, Complaint Counsel

categorically did not withhold the Darsee papers from discovery; unlike Respondents' counsel,

we were not aware of Dr. Darsee' s papers before August 30th, or that any of his papers were

submitted or withdrawn from publication, so we could not have withheld them from disclosure,

and we were not required to disclose them.2 Third, even if the papers could have been disclosed,

and should have been disclosed, Respondents have not been genuinely prejudiced-they concede

that they knew of the papers before Dr. Heymsfield s last deposition, and they have used their

four hours to examine the witness as they saw fit, asking detailed questions concerning Dr.

Darsee and even presenting an exhibit. Respondents then sat back for a full month after Dr.

Heymsfield's deposition before crying prejudice, even though Corporate Respondents' new

counsel personally explored thetopic of Dr. Darsee with the expert witness.3 Respondents have

failed to ariculate any concrete prejudice in two separate stabs at the subject.

As a matter of law, Respondents are not entitled to the measures that they demand, nor

are they entitled to reshape these proceedings by shutting out relevant expert testimony and

Our previous filings referred to John Darsee as "Mr. Darsee." Since those filings,
Complaint Counsel have been advised that Darsee was, in fact, a medical doctor enrolled at
Emory University. Accordingly, we have modified our references to Darsee in this filing.

2 See RULE 3.31(e)(l); see also infra pages 9 and 21 (noting that RULE 3.31 requires

paries to supplement initial disclosures, including expert disclosures, only when they learn "that
in some material respect the information disclosed is incomplete or incorrect and. . . . the
additional or corrective information has not otherwise been made known to the other paries").

3 Complaint Counsel note that only Corporate Respondents' counsel signed

Respondents' omnibus Motion. Corporate Respondents' counsel does not expressly state that he
represents the views of other Respondents with their permssion, and no other Respondents have
separately joined in the Motion.
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conducting satellte litigation on extraneous, collateral issues. Respondents' omnibus Motion

should be denied.

DISCUSSION

I. The Factual Background, and Setting the Record Straight

A. Background of this Dispute

Last year, Complaint Counsel named, as one of its testifying medical experts, Dr. Steven

B. Heymsfield, M.D.-a prominent scientist and medical doctor with extensive experience in

scientific research pertinent to weight loss and related topics. Dr. Heymsfield presently holds

the title of Executive Director of Clinical Sciences at Merck Laboratories and continues to be

affiliated with Columbia University. He previously served as Deputy Director of the New York

Obesity Research Center at St. Luke's-Roosevelt Hospital and held the position of full Professor

of Medicine at Columbia University.

When Complaint Counsel named Dr. Heymsfield as a testifying expert, we produced his

extensive curriculum vitae to Respondents. Dr. Heymsfield had previously submitted this CV to

Complaint Counsel in response to our request for information for purposes of expert discovery

disclosures. See Ex. A to Compl. Counsel's Opp'n to Mot. to Add Expert Witness (letter dated

Sept. 22, 2004, requesting, inter alia, list of all publications). Dr. Heymsfields detailed, 47-page

long curriculum vitae includes a lengthy list of publications, which itself lUnsover 40 single-

spaced pages. Respondents have thrice presented Dr. Heymsfield's curriculum vitae to the Court

in recent filngs, ensuring that the general scope of Dr. Heymsfield s good faith effort to comply

with the Scheduling Order is reasonably clear. See, e.g., Resp'ts' Mot. to Add Expert Witness,
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Ex. A (Heymsfield CV).4

The close of written discovery occurred on November 8, 2004. On November 8th,

after the close of business, Respondents served Complaint Counsel with copies of subpoenas

duces tecum directed to Dr. Heymsfield and other figures across the nation, demanding many

documents unrelated to the claims and defenses in this case. These tardy, irrelevant, and

burdensome discovery demands prompted Complaint Counsel to move to limit and/or quash

Respondents' subpoenas. See Compl. Counsel's Mot. for Prot. Order at 5 (Nov. 18,2004).5

In granting our Motion for relief with respect to subpoenas served on Dr. Heymsfield and others,

the Court reiterated the basic principle that expert discovery demands must be "reasonably

expected to yield information relevant to the allegations of the complaint, to the proposed relief,

or to the defenses of the respondent as required by Rule 3. 31(c)(l)." Order, Dec. 9,2004, at 4

(indicating that demands for production of unrelated publications, presentations, studies, and

patents of subpoena recipients sought "discovery beyond that permitted by the Rules, the

4 Respondents have criticized Dr. Heymsfield's CV for what they characterize as

an unexplained omission that allegedly prejudiced them. In weighing these assertions, it is
appropriate to note that, in expert discovery, Respondents produced a CV for their proposed
expert witness, Respondent Mowrey, that omitted the only study published in a medical journal
that we know to be attrbuted to him, even though Respondents (Mowrey, at the very least) knew
that it existed. See Ex. B to Compl. Counsel's Opp'n to Mot. to Add Expert Witness (Mowrey
CV disclosed in October 2004, which failed to identify publication, followed by study citation).
We leared of Dr. Mowrey's omission of this study only after the close of written discovery.
Despite this clear (and stil unexplained) omission by a named Respondent, Complaint Counsel
declined to press for sanctions, because there was no prejudice-we leared of the previously-
undisclosed publication and then had an opportunity to depose the witness. See infra Section V
(discussing Respondents' deposition of Dr. Heymsfield and failure to establish prejudice).

5 In their present Motion, Respondents allege that the filng referenced above was

in furtherance of a nefarous plot to conceal the Darsee papers-ignoring the fact, discussed
infra, that Complaint Counsel were unaware of those papers at the time. There is absolutely no
factual support for Respondents' tale of Machiavellan intrigue.
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Scheduling Order, and the Dura Lube case").6

Complaint Counsel timely provided Respondents with copies of Dr. Heymsfields Expert

Report and Rebuttal Report. The Scheduling Order set the close of depositions for mid-Januar

2005, and by agreement, the paries held the depositions of Dr. Heymsfield and Respondent

Mowrey in the week commencing Januar 10th.

On January 11,2005, Complaint Counsel made Dr. Heymsfield available for deposition.

Complaint Counsel recessed Dr. Heymsfield s deposition after more than 9Yí hours and 7 full

hours of testimony, and agreed to continue the deposition for four hours on another day, even

though Respondents provided no prior notice that they intended to take more than one day of

testimony. See Compl. Counsel's Opp'n to Resp'ts' Mot. to Strke, Feb. 8,2005, at 11-12.

Additionally, Complaint Counsel furher supplemented its expert disclosures as additional

information became available. After that second deposition, which extended Dr. Heymsfield s

testimony to eleven hours, Complaint Counsel came into possession of trial testimony of

Dr. Heymsfield in another matter, promptly produced that testimony, and offered to make the

witness available for four more hours. See CompL. Counsel's Notice, Feb. 15,2005.7 After

6 Even though its terms were limited by the Court's Order, Dr. Heymsfield

responded to Respondents' subpoena duces tecum by causing a large number of documents to
be produced Two full archive boxes consisting of many hundreds of pages of documents were
produced, with three CD-ROM discs containing hundreds of pages of additional documents.

7 In their Motion, Respondents unfairly characterize our supplemental discovery

disclosures as a prior "offenses" that reveal Dr. Heymsfields supposed bad faith. See Resp'ts'
Mot. to ExcL. Witness, Sanction Counsel, and Reopen Discovery at 30 (hereinafter "Resp'ts'
Omnibus Mot."). However, the record in this matter indicates that Complaint Counsel have
volunteered supplemental disclosures when discoverable information has come to the attention
of our expert witness and ourselves, consistent with the RULES and the Orders of this Court.
Respondents' severe criticism for our consistent practice of complying with these requirements is
misplaced-surely they would not have preferred that counsel not supplement its disclosures at
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lengthy motion practice, the Court allowed Respondents these additional four hours to depose

Dr. Heymsfield and denied Respondents' request for reconsideration of that time limit. See

Order, March 15,2005 (ruling on Resp'ts' Mot. to Strike Expert Witnesses and for Sanctions

and Other Relief); Order, Aug. 9,2005 (ruling on Resp't Gay's Mot. for Recons.).

When Dr. Heymsfields four-hour deposition commenced on August 30th, Respondent

Friedlander asked Dr. Heymsfield about his list of publications, and Dr. Heymsfield affirmed:

"To the best of my administrator's abilty they are all in there. There might be something,

something I've published that's not there for, you know, reàsons of error, but not to omit

anything. If a paper, for example, there were several papers that were retracted a number of years

ago, those papers are not on my CV." Ex. A hereto (Heymsfield Dep., Aug. 30,2005, at 451-52).

Dr. Heymsfield volunteered that his list of publications would not have included papers that had

been withdrawn from publication. See id. at 451-453,655. The transcript indicates that Dr.

Heymsfield volunteered this information, see id. at 451-453,655, belying Respondents'

contentions that Dr. Heymsfield testified "evasively."

Dr. Heymsfield raised the topic of John Darsee, an individual who performed research at

the University of Notre Dame, Emory University and later went to Harvard University. ¡d. at

452-61,618-36,641-46,655-60. Around twenty-five years ago, Dr. Heymsfield paricipated in

some research with Dr. Darsee at Emory. Dr. Heymsfield was not, however, privy to all of the



research data. Dr. Darsee was not his employee and Dr. Heymsfield was not Darsee's supervisor.

did not supervise, evaluate, or grade him. ¡d. at 455,461. At Harard, it was discovered that Dr.

Darsee had fabricated data in his academic career at Notre Dame, Emory, and Harvard.

Consequently, papers involving Dr. Darsee's fabrications were retracted from medical journals

and withdrawn from publication. ¡d. at 452-53, 646. Among the many papers and abstracts that

were withdrawn were several papers in which Dr. Heymsfield had been listed as one of Dr.

Darsee's co-authors.8 Dr. Heymsfield was one of numerous scientists listed as co-authors on

papers authored by Dr. Darsee. ¡d. at 453; see also Resp'ts' Omnibus Mot. at 10 (identifying

eight other co-authors listed on one or more papers on which Dr. Heymsfield was listed). After

Dr. Darsee's papers were withdrawn from publication, the Dean of Emory University advised Dr.

Heymsfield that it was appropriate to remove the Darsee papers from his list of publications. ¡d.

at 655. Based on the medical journals' withdrawal of the Darsee papers from publication, and

the statement of the Dean at Emory, Dr. Heymsfield has not treated the papers as published

studies, and has not identified papers withdrawn from publication as publications in his CV.

As Dr. Heymsfield testified at the end of his four-hour deposition, he informed the FTC

staff about Dr. Darsee's fabrication of data in general, but he did not inform the staff that this

8 Dr. Heymsfield testified that he thought that all or nearly all of Dr. Darsee's work

had been withdrawn from publication. Ex. A, Heymsfield Dep. at 646. In their present Motion,
Respondents affirm Dr. Heymsfields testimony, averrng that all papers bearng Dr. Darsee's
name, with Dr. Heymsfield listed as a co-author, were withdrawn from publication. See, e.g.,
Resp'ts' Omnibus Mot. at 11. In their Reply to our Opposition to the Motion to Add an Expert
Witness, Respondents represented that two of those papers were not retracted. Resp'ts' Reply to
Opp'n at 1. However, our review indicates that only one of these papers was not retracted. See
Compl. Counsel's Opp'n to Pet., Oct. 20,2005. In any event, the cited testimony establishes that
Dr. Heymsfield did not identify Darsee papers as publications based on an honestly-held belief
that they had been withdrawn from publication.
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data was in papers submitted to journals and subsequently retracted. ¡d. at 665-660; see infra

Section il (discussing and presenting record in full). Before August 30th, we were not aware that

Dr. Darsee's fabricated data had been submitted or withdrawn from publication.

Respondents were aware of the Darsee papers before the deposition took place, however;

and had a four-hour opportunity to depose Dr. Heymsfield on the topics of their choice, including

the topic of Dr. Darsee. These conclusions find ample support in the record and circumstances of

Dr. Heymsfields August deposition.9 As previously noted, Respondent Friedlander opened that

deposition by eliciting testimony from Dr. Heymsfield concerning Dr. Darsee, his papers, and his

fabricated data. Ex. A, Heymsfield Dep. at 451-61. After obtaining this testimony, Respondents

moved onto other topics for much of the allotted four hours. Later in the deposition, however,

Respondent Gay's counsel questioned Dr. Heymsfield about Dr. Darsee and his papers, see id. at

626-30, and counsel produced an exhibit, a printed web page referencing Dr. Darsee's fabrication

of data and purporting to quote Dr. Heymsfield. The bottom right-hand corner of this exhibit

bore the print date of April 2, 2005-"4/02/05." See Ex. 20 to Heymsfield Dep. (attached hereto

at end of Ex. A). Respondent Gay's counsel then questioned Dr. Heymsfield concerning this

. web page printed last ApriL. Ex. A, Heymsfield Dep. at 630-36. And yet again, near the end of

the four hour deposition, Corporate Respondents' new counsel twice visited the topic of Dr.

Darsee and his papers. See id. at 644-646, 655-60. These circumstances evidence that

Respondents were aware of the Darsee papers before the deposition took place, and that

they used a four hour opportunity to depose him on that topic and others as they saw fit.

9 See also infra page 26 (discussing additional grounds for conclusion that

Respondents were aware of papers before the deposition took place).
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B. Setting the Record Straight

Respondents' Motion is a baseless attack on the integrty of counsel supporting the

Complaint. To respond to Respondents' Motion, it is necessar to set the record straight.

Respondents' omnibus Motion to Exclude a Witness andfor Sanctions, or in the Alternative,

Reopen Discovery alleges that Dr. Heymsfield acted without justification in not identifying, as

publications, papers that had been withdrawn from publication; that Complaint Counsel knew

of the Darsee papers before August 30th. and plotted, over a year ago, not to disclose them to

Respondents; and that Respondents have been seriously prejudiced by a prior non-identification.

These allegations have no basis in fact.

In their omnibus Motion, Respondents attempt to prove these baseless allegations by

purporting to quote the record-that is, the August 30th deposition testimony of Dr. Heymsfield.

By our count, however, there are at least twenty (20) instances in Respondents' Motion in which

Corporate Respondents' counsel has inserted ellpses in transcribed statements with the evident

aim of coloring the record, depicting the witness' testimony as "halting" and unreliable, and most

unjustifiably, removing contemporaneous objections by Complaint Counsel that are relevant to

an understanding of the questions that Respondents posed and the answers that they elicited. See

. Resp'ts' Omnibus Mot. at 12-23; see also Section IV.A (presenting five cited pages of deposition

transcript in unexpurgated form, in double-indented block quotes, framed by our argument).

This Court should not rely on Respondents' slanted reproduction of the record. For the

convenience of the Court, Complaint Counsel have attached all of the transcript pages submitted

in the briefing to date on Respondents' omnibus Motion, and their previous Motion to Add an

Expert Witness and to Reopen Discovery. See Ex. A (Heymsfield Dep., Aug. 30, 2005).
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We discuss the pertinent portions of the deposition transcript below, to confirm three

points: (1) Dr. Heymsfield has acted in good faith and has offered a reasonable explanation for

not identifying scientific papers withdrawn from publication as scientific publications;

(2) Complaint Counsel did not refrain from disclosing the papers to Respondents, we were

unaware of the papers or that they had been submitted or withdrawn from publication, and

consequently we were both unable to disclose them and not required to do so; and (3) even if the

Darsee papers could and should have been identified in the expert disclosures, Respondents have

not been genuinely prejudiced, and they are not entitled to the measures that they demand.

Lastly, lest Respondents' unfounded accusations of wrongdoing continue to linger,

Complaint Counsel and Dr. Heymsfield have submitted the attached declarations of fact to

extinguish Respondents' innuendos and accusations, and set the record straight. See Ex. B hereto

(Heymsfield Decl.); Ex. C hereto (Co,mpL. Counsel Decl.).



that the response is in some material respect incomplete or incorrect.

RULE 3 .31 (e). This RULE requires paries to supplement initial disclosures "if the pary lears

that in some material respect the information disclosed is incomplete or incorrect," and the

additional information has not otherwise been made known to the other paries. Id. § 3.31(e)(I)

(emphasis added). As this provision makes clear, the duty to supplement discovery disclosures

arses once counsel actually lears additional facts, facts not known to the other paries.

With this background, we turn to the standards applicable to Respondents' demands.

Respondents demand in their present Motion that the Cour sanction Complaint Counsel,

preclude us from presenting certain expert testimony relevant to the merits of the Complaint, and

reopen discovery on a collateral topic that Respondents have already explored in great depth.

Respondents' first two demands may be analyzed under RULE 3.38, which states that if a

pary fails to comply with an order, including an order compelling discovery, "the Admnistrative

Law Judge. . . for the purpose of permtting resolution of relevant issues and disposition of the

proceeding without unnecessar delay despite such failure, may take such action in regard thereto

as is just." RUL 3.38(b). Sanctions include, but are not limited to, "an order that matters sought

to be discovered wil be taken as inferred or established, a preclusion order, the striking of the

pleadings, the right to introduce secondar evidence without objection, and such other orders as

are just." In re Grand Union Co., 102 F.T.C. 812, 1087 (1983).

"The Commission has developed some more specific principles to help determne when

one or more of these sanctions should be applied." In re lIT Corp., 104 F.T.C. 280,448 (1984):

e more spreopen discothe1983)."The Commissuesr inn ltion th6 T th(mplehe mee such o of the



agent) from whom the material is sought; (2) the pary's failure to comply is
unjustified; and (3) the sanction imposed "is reasonable in light of the material
withheld and the purposes of Rule 3.38(b)."

Id. at 449 (citing In re Grand Union Co., 102 F.r.C. at 1087). Assuming that the expert

disclosure requirements of RUL 3.31 and the Scheduling Order may constitute a "specific

discovery order" within the ambit of RULE 3.38, see lIT Corp., 104 F.T.C. at 449,10 the Court

must decide whether twenty-year old papers largely withdrawn from publication fall within the

ambit of the publication disclosures required by the Scheduling Order, whether Dr. Heymsfield

and Complaint Counsel have no justification for not identifying those papers before August 30tli.

and whether the proposed sanctions of striking an expert witness and condemning counsel in

personam are reasonable, just, and appropriate under the circumstances. i i

Respondents' last demand, that discovery be reopened, requires a demonstration of good

cause under Paragraph 6 of the Scheduling Order and RULE 3.21(c)(2). As the Court has often

10 RULE 3.38 does not expressly refer to orders requiring disclosure, but authorizes

sanctions for failure to comply with orders compellng discovery. See RULE 3.38(b) (referrng to
alleged "failure to comply with a subpoena or with an order including but not limited to, an order
for the taking of a deposition, the production of documents, or the answering of interrogatories or
requests for admissions or an order of the Administrative Law Judge").

11 RULE 3.38(b)'s analogue in the Federal Rules is FED. R. Cry. P. 37, which deals

with paries' alleged failures to cooperate in discovery. See In re Grand Union Co., 102 F.T.C.
at 1090 (recognizing close relationship between RULE 3.38(b) and FED. R. Civ. P. 37). Federal
Rule 37 states, in pertinent par:

A pary that without substantial justification fails to disclose information required
by Rule 26(a) . . . is not, unless such failure is haress, permitted to use as
evidence at a trial, at a hearing, or on a motion any witness or information not so
disclosed. In addition to or in lieu of this sanction, the court, on motion and after
affording an opportunity to be heard, may impose other appropriate sanctions.

FED. R. Civ. P. 37(c)(1). Federal Rule 37 asks whether the pary had "substantial justification"
for a non-disclosure, rather than requiring the movant to show that the party's failure to disclose
information was "unjustified." Compare id. with lIT Corp., 104 F.T.C. at 448.
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observed, however, discovery sought in a Commssion proceeding must be "reasonably expected

to yield information relevant to the allegations of the complaint, to the proposed relief, or to the

defense of any respondent." RULE 3.31(c)(1); see Order on CompL. Counsel's Mot. to Stnke

Resp'ts' Addl Def., Nov. 4, 2004 (citing RULE 3.31(c)(1) for same proposition and reminding

parties that defense allegations are "not an open invitation to needlessly confuse and compound

the issues, increase the scope of discovery, or prolong these proceedings"). Moreover, paries

must promptly raise requests to conduct discovery out of time; such requests may be denied for

unexplained delay. See Order on CompL. Counsel's Mot. to Serve Subpoena, Apr. 5, 2005, at 2.

III. Dr. Heymsfield Has Acted in Good Faith and Has Offered a Reasonable

Explanation for Not Identifying the Darsee Papers In His Currculum Vitae

There is abundant evidence that Dr. Heymsfield has made good faith efforts to comply

with the publication disclosure requirement of the Cour's Scheduling Order, and Dr. Heymsfield

has ariculated a reasonable, bona fide explanation for not identifying papers that he understood

to be withdrawn from publication as published studies. Nevertheless, Respondents allege in

their omnibus Motion that Dr. Heymsfield withheld material evidence from Respondents, and

purposefully refused to identify papers that were withdrawn from publication around 20 years

ago, in wilful defiance of the disclosure requirements of the Court's Scheduling Order. See

Resp'ts' Omnibus Mot. at 4,5. These unproven assertions could not be further from the truth.

Respondents flatly presume bad faith where there is abundant evidence of good faith efforts to

comply with the Court's Order, and a reasonable explanation for any previous non-identification.

First, Dr. Heymsfield made a substantial, good faith effort to disclose all of his

professional publications, as Complaint Counsel requested in a letter dated September 22,2004.
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papers were clouded by suspicion and therefore, mainly withdrawn. Certainly the major ones



against attorney on appeal). Similarly, Dr. Heymsfield does not regard papers that have been

retracted and withdrawn from publication to be published studies. Errors and waste of resources

could result if researchers cited and relied on withdrawn papers. See Ex. B hereto (Heymsfield

Decl.). It is plain that when Complaint Counsel asked Dr. Heymsfield to produce a list of all of

his publications, it honestly did not occur to him, as a scientist and medical practitioner, to

disclose, as "publications," papers that he genuinely and reasonably believed had been

withdrawn from publication more than twenty years ago, for the grounds previously stated.

In their Motion, Respondents do not acknowledge the deposition testimony quoted on the

previous page, or even attempt to address the reason that Dr. Heymsfield actually ariculated for

why the Darsee papers were not identified as publications in his curriculum vitae. They do not

discuss inconvenient facts. Instead, they simply make reference to the fact that the withdrawn

Darsee papers were not identified as publications and then create a "straw man," inventing what

they describe as a "self serving" argument, which they then attribute to Dr. Heymsfield, that the

"material sought would not have been of value to the requesting pary." See Resp'ts' Omnibus

Mot. at 29. Respondents have failed to offer a transcript citation to prove that this bogus "straw

man" actually exists.



no explanation whatsoever for omitting his only published study from his CV, Dr. Heymsfield

has offered a legitimate explanation for his actions. Respondents' accusations to the contrar

fall of their own weight.

iv. Complaint Counsel Were Not Previously Aware of Dr. Darsee's Papers,
We Did Not Withhold Them from Disclosure, and We Were
Not Required to Disclose Them Under RULE 3.31

Complaint Counsel could not have withheld the Darsee papers from disclosure, we did

not withhold them from disclosure, and we could not have been required to disclose them as

Respondents mistakenly suggest.13 There is no basis in fact for Respondents' contention that

Complaint Counsel concealed or otherwise withheld discoverable information. Respondents'



subsequently withdrawn from publication and his list of publications. We demonstrate this point

below first by reviewing all five pages of deposition testimony cited by Respondents, sentence by

sentence-with our timely objections noted, not omitted.

A. The Record Establishes that Complaint Counsel Were Not Aware

of Dr. Darsee's Papers, and Did Not Withhold Them from Disclosure

At the start of the cited transcript exchange, which occurred just before the conclusion of



/d. at 655-56. This deposition testimony is correct, and it dispels Respondents' allegations that

Complaint Counsel supposedly concealed or otherwise withheld discoverable iuesupposed



up in trials where attempts were made to discredit me one way or the
other, the Darsee was par of it, and the papers are such an insignificant
part of that. They are public record, you can go on to PubMed and find
them. And I have long since put that to bed in terms of my career, so there
was never -- there are hundreds of small aspects to the Darsee thing that I
haven't revealed because I wasn't asked.

¡d. at 656-57. This testimony is consistent with Dr. Heymsfields previous testimony; he testified

that he informed the staff of "the matters that he considered issues." ¡d. at 656. He did not

mention the papers asan issue, only Dr. Darsee's fabrication of data. See id. at 656-57.

Thereafter, Complaint Counsel advised Respondents that they had reached the four-hour

time limit for the deposition as set in the Court's Orders; indeed, the videographer employed by

Respondents noted that she had reached the end of the second tape. Complaint Counsel then

agreed to resume the deposition for two minutes because the videographer indicated, off the

record, that the tape might have stopped two minutes early. As the next exchange indicates,

Corporate Respondents' counsel persisted in mischaracterizing the witness' testimony and

incorrectly assuming that Dr. Heymsfield had testified that he told informed Complaint Counsel

that Dr. Darsee's data appeared in published studies.

MS. KAPIN: I think time is up, gentleman.
MR. EMORD: Well, I have a few more questions.
MS. KAPIN: Four hours according to the court's order.
MR. FRIEDLANDER: Are we at four hours or do we need a tape change?
MS. KAIN: The tapes are two hours a piece, Mitch.
MS. VIDEOGRAPHER: The time is 1 :58 and we're reached the end of tape

number two.
MS. KAPIN: We are at the end of the four hours, that is what the court has

ordered.

(Recess taken. )
MS. VIDEOGRAPHER: The time is now 2:02. This is tape number three and we

are back on the record.
Q. Dr. Heymsfield, who among FTC counsel did you inform about the Darsee

studies?
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MS. KAIN: Objection, characterization as to "Darsee studies."
A. I informed the FTC about Darsee in general, but I can't remember

specifically who that was. I've interacted with several people at the FTC
so I don't remember exactly who that was.

¡d. at 657-58 (emphasis added). Once more, we objected to Respondents' mischaracterization of

the testimony, and Dr. Heymsfield reaffirmed that he told the FTC about Dr. Darsee in general.

The rest of the cited testimony adds nothing further. At the final conclusion of the four-

hour deposition, Corporate Respondents' counsel asked Dr. Heymsfield a set of questions using

the word "it" or "the disclosure'"to refer to the subject matter identified by the witness, i.e.,

"Darsee in general." ¡d. at 658. Respondents suggest in their Motion that the witness' testimony



was it before or after your expert report was prepared?
A. I'm going by recollection and it's always when people first call me and ask

me to be an expert for them.

Q. All right. So it was when you were first retained in this case?
A. More than likely.
Q. Thank you, very much. One more question. This is what happens with

multiple lawyers, I apologize?
MS. KAPIN: Actually your time is up.

The cited testimony from the conclusion of the four-hour deposition, the contents of

which are reproduced above, plainly do not support Respondents' assertion that Complaint

Counsel concealed or otherwise withheld discoverable information.

When reproduced in their entirety, the cited testimony does demonstrate that Complaint

Counsel repeatedly objected to the manner in which Respondents attempted to mislead the

witness and get him to adopt statements that he did not actually offer, by consistently misstating

or mischaracterizing his testimony. 
15 Contrar to Respondents' assertions, Dr. Heymsfield did



B. Complaint Counsel Were Not Required to Disclose

Dr. Darsee's Papers Under RULE OF PRACTICE 3.31

Additionally, there are no grounds for a finding that Complaint Counsel declined to



their demands for the imposition of sanctions against Complaint Counsel, the preclusion of Dr.

Heymsfields testimony, and renewed discovery into a collateral topic that Respondents have

already explored in depth. Respondents have not been genuinely prejudiced.

Assuming, for purposes of argument, that withdrawn papers are published studies, and

that Dr. Heymsfield and Complaint Counsel both had no legitimate explanation for not disclosing

the withdrawn papers before August 30th, Respondents must show that sanctions are reasonable,

just, and appropriate under the circumstances present here.. See RULE 3.38(b); In re Grand Union

Co., 102 F.T.C. at 1087 (stating that sanctions must be "reasonable in light of the material

withheld and the purposes of Rule 3.38(b)"); c¡' FED. R. eiv. P. 37 (stating that haress failure

to disclose information required by Rule 26(a) is not grounds for sanction). Respondents cannot

satisfy this requirement.

A. Respondents Have Failed to Articulate CQncrete Prejudice

First, Respondents have failed to ariculate any actual, concrete prejudice. Their Motion

contains a header alleging that Respondents have been prejudiced, but the 3Yi pages that follow

do not explain how this is so. Only the introduction and the conclusion to their argument contain

any allegations, and those bare allegations are unsupported in fact and law.

Respondents summarly allege, in their introduction, that the timing of Dr. Heymsfields

testimony concerning Dr. Darsee "prejudices the Respondents' preparation," and "effectively

prevented before the close of discovery a full and fair opportunity for Respondents to use all

tools of discovery to expose the full extent of the fraud." Resp'ts' Omnibus Mot. at 29. In the

conclusion of their argument, Respondents flatly reassert that they "would be irreparably

prejudiced if denied the opportunity to review, rebut, and adduce information concerning the

-24-



newly discovered facts." Id. at 32. These assertions cannot allege actual, concrete prejudice for

two basic reasons. First, the RULS OF PRCTICE, not the actions of Complaint Counsel, preclude

Respondents from using the discovery mechanisms of the Commssion to investigate subjects

unrelated to the pares' claims and defenses, and the scope of relief. See RULE 3.31(c)(1).

Respondents are not entitled to use the Commssion's powers in aid of an investigation into

collateral matters. The Court's previous Order limiting and quashing Respondents' subpoenas

duces tecum speaks directly to this point. Even if all paries to this litigation had been aware of

the Darsee papers last year, Respondents' far-ranging demands for information would not have

fallen within the scope of proper discovery. See Order, Dec. 9, 2004, at 4 (indicating that

demands for publications and other materials belonging to subpoena recipients sought "discovery

beyond that permitted by the Rules, the Scheduling Order, and the Dura Lube case").

Second, Respondents have not explained how the timing of Dr. Heymsfield's testimony

concerning Dr. Darsee "prejudices the Respondents' preparation," as the Darsee matter is a

discrete topic, unrelated to other factual or legal issues, clearly unrelated to the relevant facts

concerning the paries' claims and defenses, and hardly central to the hearng in this matter.

Moreover, the record of these proceedings evidences that Respondents have had access to all of

the tools of discovery to explore the matters that are subject to discovery under the RULS. As

for Respondents' bare assertion that they have lacked the opportunity to review and rebut "newly

discovered facts," we have previously noted that Respondents were aware of the Darsee papers

before August 30th, and they obtained testimony from Dr. Heymsfield on that date. We further

discuss Respondents' assertion of surprise in Section V.B, infra.

Respondents' bare assertions of prejudice are not grounds for sanctions. See generally
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Lohrenz v. Donnelly, 223 F. Supp. 2d 25, 33 (D.D.C. 2002) (declining to impose sanctions, even

though plaintiff's expert failed to disclose all publications, and plaintiff offered no substantial

justification for such failure, because defendant failed to aver actual prejudice); Currier v. United

Techs. Corp., 213 F.R.D. 87, 88 (D. Me. 2003) (concluding that plaintiff's failure to list past



during that deposition, Respondent Gay's counsel produced a printed exhibit referencing Dr.

Darsee's fabrication of data. The bottom right-hand comer of this printed web page bore the

print date of April 2, 2005-"4/02/05." See Ex. 20 to Heymsfield Dep (attached hereto at the

end of Ex. A). This evidence casts serious doubt on Respondents' repeated and conflcting.

assertions of surprise. 
16

The fact that Respondents knew of the Darsee papers before the expert's deposition

clearly weighs against a conclusion that they were prejudiced by any previous non-identification.

See Roberts v. Galen, Inc., 325 F.3d 776, 782-83 (6th Cir. 2003); id. at 783 ("The fact that

Roberts knew of the lack of disclosures and Galen apparently did not may suggest that these

violations should be considered substantially justified or harless.").

Based on the foregoing, it is clear that Respondents have had a full and fair opportunity to

conduct the discovery permtted by the RULES, and they cannot show any prejudice from any

previous non-identification. Respondents asked Dr. Heymsfield detailed questions concerning

the topic of Dr. Darsee. They then waited a full month after the deposition before crying

prejudice, a delay not attributable to Corporate Respondents' change of counsel, for Corporate

Respondents' new counsel was present at the deposition and explored the topic. In a strikingly

16 Compare id. (exhibit with April 2005 print date) with Resp'ts' Omnibus Mot.

at 10 (claiming that the "facts were first revealed" to Respondents "at the August 30,2005
deposition"); see also CompL. Counsel's Opp'n to Mot. to Add Expert Witness at 2 n.1 (recallng
assertion by Corporate Respondents' counsel that Respondent Friedlander knew of the issues
"before the deposition").

Indeed, in submitting documents with their omnibus Motion, it appears that Respondents
have attempted to cover their tracks. Instead of simply reproducing and submitting the actual
deposition exhibit, which clearly bore a April print date, Respondents elected to submit a newer



similar. situation, Complaint Counsel was not prejudiced by Respondent Mowrey's failure to

timely disclose his own publication prior to the close of written discovery, because we leared of

the previously-undisclosed publication and had a subsequent opportunity to depose the witness.

See supra note 3. Respondents have not been prejudiced here.

C. Respondents Are Not Legally Entitled to the Measures Demanded

Lastly, under the facts present here, Respondents are not entitled to the demanded

sanctions and discovery. Respondents' stated goals are to strke and discredit Dr. Heymsfield

as an expert. Considering the circumstances present here, and the genuine possibility that Dr.

Heymsfield's trthful and relevant testimony may establish that the widely-disseminated claims

alleged for three challenged products were unsubstantiated, the requested sanction is manifestly



such a finding here. Complaint Counsel asked Dr. Heymsfield for a list of all publications, and

he returned a comprehensive list, in good faith. As previously discussed, papers withdrawn from

publication are not publications as Dr. Heymsfield uses and understands the term. Complaint

Counsel were unaware of the withdrawn papers and thus had no grounds to suggest otherwise.

Respondents were aware of the withdrawn papers, and when they asked the witness a simple,

open-ended question concerning his publication list, the expert witness promptly volunteered the

existence of those papers as well. These circumstances are not redolent of bad faith; to the







not at stake here. What is at stake is the scope of these proceedings. Respondents' Motion

threatens an unreasonable and unwaranted reshaping of the hearng process itself-away from

relevant and admissible testimony, toward collateral issues and inadmssible documents, and into

satellte discovery and litigation on topics not related 
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its fiing to ensure the proper use and redaction of material ubject to the Protective Order in this matter
and protect against any violation of that Order or applicab e ULE OF PRACTICE.

s A. Kohm
Ass ciate Director, Division of Enforcement
Bureau of Consumer Protection

-33-



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on this 20th day of October, 2005, I caused Complaint Counsel's Opposition
to Respondents' Omnibus Motion to be served and fied as follows:

(1) the original, two (2) paper copies fied by hand delivery

and one (1) electronic copy via email to:
Donald S. Clark, Secretary
Federal Trade Commssion
600 Penn. Ave., N.W., Room H-135
Washington, D.C. 20580

(2) two (2) paper copies served by hand delivery to:

The Honorable Stephen J. McGuire
Administrative Law Judge
600 Penn. Ave., N.W., Room H-104
Washington, D.C. 20580

(3) one (1) electronic copy via emai1 and one (1) paper copy

by first class mail to the following persons:

Stephen E. Nagin
Nagin Gallop Figuerdo P.A.
3225 Aviation Ave.
Miami, FL 33133-4741
(305) 854-5353
(305) 854-5351 (fax)
snagin lWngf-law .com
For Respondents

Richard D. Burbidge
Burbridge &- Mitchell

215 S. State St., Suite 920
Salt Lake City, UT 84111
(801) 355-6677
(801) 355-2341 (fax)
rburbidge(9 burbidgeandmitchelL.com

For Respondent Gay

Mitchell K. Friedlander
5742 West Harold Gatty Dr.
Salt Lake City, UT 84116
(801) 517-7000
(801) 517-7108 (fax)
mkf555 lQmsn.com
Respondent Pro Se

Ronald F. Price
Peters Scofield Price
310 Broadway Centre
111 East Broadway
Salt Lake City, UT 84111
(801) 322-2002
(801) 322-2003 (fax)
rfp(gpsplawvers.com
For Respondent Mowrey

Jonathan W. Emord
Emord & Associates, P.c.
1800 Alexander Bell Dr. #200
Reston, VA 20191
(202) 466-6937
(202) 466-6938 (fax)
iemord (gemord.com
For Respondents
Klein-Becker USA, LLC,
A.G. Waterhouse, LLC,
Basic Research, LLC,
Nutrasport, LLC, Sovage
Dermalogic Laboratories,
LLC, and BAQ6. Waterh

/F228 11.664Tf

0.00ent801s Tf

1.20o1.28 TD

(rfp(gpsplaUU&3c23.52 TD

(Jonathan W. Emord) Tj

/F230  Tj

FAvmHh

0.4.Kona6Rone (1) pap 11.44 Tf

0.00 -12.9111) Tj

/F2 COUr USA, LLC,



EXHIBIT A



.~

l

':\.
' il,;;~

'W:
J~)_. '

~;¡

~Ì"~".t

.',l- .

10
11

12
13
14

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24
25

1

2 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA



Page 450

)

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

HEYMSFIELD

MR. EMORD: Jonathan Emard on

behalf of Klein Becker USA.

MR. PRICE: Ron Price on behalf of

respondent Daniel Mowrey.
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1

2 before you. It i s the one sticking out I
3 think.
4

5

A.

Q.

Page 451

HEYMS FIELD

Okay.

Before we get back to where we left

6 off the last time, it i S been a number of

7 months since we met the last time.

8 Have you had any published
9 papers published since the time we last met?

10 A. I i ve had papers published, but

11 nothing related to this case that I'm aware

12 of, but yes.
,
i

13

,14

15 Q..

Q.

A.

Anything that iS publishect?
Yes.
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error, but not to omit anything. - I f a paper,
for example, there were several papers that
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Emory that involved any fabrication were

3 retracted from the medical journals.

Q. What was his name?

A. Darsee, John Darsee.

Q. You were a co-author?

A. Yes, me and about 25 other people,

25 or 3.0 .

Q. That wereme
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more than likely you will be able to find if

3 you type in Darsea, D-A-R-S-E-E, you should

4 be able to pull up those papers. Even though

5 they are retracted they are still more than

6 likélY in electronic form on the internet.

7 Q. Pardon the question, but what's the

8 role of a co~author?

9

10

11

A. What is the role of a co-author?

Q. Yes.

A. It's actually fairly

12 well-described. There's c~iteria for
13 co-authorship that's published by each

;)

14 journal and so you can see it there, but
15 there's a criteria for co-authorship and

16 there are a number of. different functions a
17 co-author has. It doesn't -- it may not

'18 necessarily be one function. It can be three
19 or four different functions.
20 Q. Does a co-author have any

21 reaponsibili ty in regards to how a study is
22 published, a review of the data, things like

23 that?
, 24 A. I'm not sure, you know, exactly

25 what the question is you are asking. Of

ESQUI DEPOSmON SERVlæs
1-800-944-9454
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course that, you know! people who are

3 co-authors share certain responsibilities for

4 the data.

5 Q. So ,did you share any responsibility

6 in the fraudulent data being supplied by

7 Darsee?

8 A. You mean, are you asking me if I

9 was involved in the fraud?

10 Q. I'm asking you what your

11 involvement was in the study?

12 A. I was a 'colleague and I

13 participated in the research with him. I saw
14 some of the patients that were in the study
15 and I helped him prepare the manuscript,

16 manuscripts, several.
17

18

Q. So you were privy to all the data?

No. "All of the data," no., IA.

19. rarel~- ~~~ all the data in any study, except

20 in studies which I'm the primary author of

21 the. paper.
22 Q. So when you are a co-author you see

23 less of the data and take less
24 responsibility; is that what you are saying?

l
..

25 A. No, that's what you are saying.

ESQUI DEPOSmON SERVIæ8
1-800-944-9454
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Q . . 0 ka y .

A. You know, co-authorship, as.I

4 mentioned, can be based on any set of

5 cri teria. There are ten different things you

6 do when you are a co-author. You have to

7 meet us~ally two or three of those different

8 things to be a co-author, so a part of it
9 could be getting the funds to the study,

10 helping to prepare the manuscript, analyzing
11 the data, designing the studies.
12

13
")

It's a rather long list. So

~o-authorship is very variablé depending on

14 specific study.
15

16

i 7

18

19

20

21

22

Q. So in your list of publications,

many of them list you as a co-author?

A. Yes.

Q. We would have to go through each

and
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\

I

2 Darsee studies?

3

4

A. Yes.

Q. What do you mean by the word

5 "fraud" in that context?

6 A. Darsee made up data that was

7 eventually put into the papers. He

.8 fabricated the data. He claims to have

9 evaluated patients that actually were not

10 able to be found later. I'm not sure Darsee

11 ever admitted to it, but there was a
12 commi ttee formed that established that the
13 pàtients who were in some of h'is papers could

.'1

14 not be identified.
15. Q. When you talk about the "student"

16 that student was Darsee; is that correct?

17

18

A. Yes.

Q. And was Darsee under your

19 supervision?

20 A. Not at the time he was caught for

21 his fabrication, no, he was at Harvard at

22 that point.
23 Q.. The time he committed the fraud was

24 he under your supervision?

25 A. No, he was not under my direct

ESQUI DEPosmON SERVICE
1-800-944-9454
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supervision. He was working as a medical

resident, in fact, he was chief resident at

Emory Uni versi ty. He is under the direct

supervision of the chief of medicine,

Willis Hearst (phonetic).
Q. Was he under your supervision in

any way; direct, indirect?

A. I don't think so, I mean other than

I had a. higher rank than he did. I was

probably an assistant professor and he was

still in training and, therefore, our ranks

were different, but I. didn't supervise him.

And in the world I live in today, the word

"supervision" has very speciflc meaning.

No, he was not an employee of mine,

nor did I evaluate him or grade him in any

way.

Q. Did you write to the peer review
journals that published the studies and ask

for retraction of the studies?

A. Well, I think that there were
retraction letters and I believe that I did

sign some of them. I would have to go back.

My memory on this is not impeccable, but

ESQUI DEPosmON SERVIæs
1-800~9449454
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A. . Sure.
3 Q. Co-authorship is a subj ect that. I
4 want to and I know Mr. Friedlander went

5 into that. I want to ask just a couple more

6 questions ..

7 I take it it would just not be
8 ethical to just lend your name to a study

9 that you weren't familiar with, fair?
10

11

12

13

MS. KAPIN: Obj ection, relevance,

overbroad.
A. Yeah, I -- "lend your name," you

mean being a co-author on a study that you
"

i 14 are not familiar with, -is that
15 Q. Right dn the ~oney. We're starting
16 to just -- we're on the same sheet of music.

17 A. You would have to give me a

18 specific example for me to answer yes or no.

19

20

21

Q. Really?

A. Yes.

'Q. So if somebody came up to you and

22 said Dr. Heymsfield, you have a great

23 reputation in the weight loss area. I've
24 didn't a study, it's going to be published in

25 the New England Journal of Medicine. - I want

ESQUI DEPosmON SERVIæs
1-800-944-9454



1
,
'\
)

, 2

3

4 .

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

1S

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 619

HEYMSFIELD

to put your name on it, even though you have

not and will not have anything to do with the

study, will you agree to do that for me?

A. You know, you use my name, but. that

doesn't meet the criteria. for co-authorship.

If what you said is true, in other words, the

person had nothing to do with the study

wha tsoever and they put their name on it,

that doesn't meet the requirements for

co-authorship.
Q. Exactly.. So you would say "no"

right, in that instance?

MS .KAPÌN: Objection, calls for

speculation, relevance.

A. The person had ---I'm sorry.

MS. KAPIN: That's all right.

Go ahead.

A. The person had nothing to do with

the study, doesn't meet the requirements for

co-authorship, period, then they wouldn't be

on the paper. Because you have to signoff

for the journals whether or not you meet the

cri teria for co-authorship.

Q. Okay, and are there again,. are

ESQUI DEPOSITON SERVICES
1-800-944-9454
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2 there published standards that I can look to

3 and say, look, if somebody signed on as a

4 co-author this is the standard that they had

5 to meet?

6

7

8

MS. KAPIN: Obj ection, overbroad,

ambiguous, relevance.

JA . The standards for co-authorship

9 have changed over time. Now the standards

10 for co-authorship are very serious. You have

11 to sign a statement saying that you meet the

12 cri teria for co-authorship. That's only been

13 in place for several years. I' can't tell you
14 the exact number of years, but when we go

15 back, say 1950, no such standards ¡existed.

16 Q. Well, let's just take your career.

17'That's something you are familiar with.
18

19

A. Yes.

, Q. In your career have you personally

20 adopted a certain standard that I'm not
21, lending my name, I'm not putting my, name on a

22 study unless I have this minimum involvement?

23

24

MS. KAPIN: Obj ection, relevance.

A. Again, you know, I can't really

25 answer that out of context. If you gave

ESQUI DEPOSmON SERVICE
1-800-9449454
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2 me -- you can go through my CV or whatever

3 publications you can find and I can tell you

4 what my role specifically in that study was.

5

6

7

Q. I appreciate that.

I would be happy to do' that.
The fact that you can't tell me,

A.

Q.

8 maybe that's the answer to the question. But

9 I take it you have never embraced for

10 yourself, this is my minimal standard of

11 involvement before I'll put my name on a

12 study?

13 MS. KAPIN: Obj ection,

14

15

argumentative, mischaracterizes.
A. You know, again, I would have to

16 see a specific example. But getting back to
17 what you said, if someone has no involvement,

18 no, zero involvement in the study and they

19 are approached and 1'11 be specific for

20 myself -- that if I had no involvement

21 whatsoever in the study and I was approached

22 to be a co-author on the study, I wouldn't

23 put my name on that study if I had no
24 involvement in any aspect of that trial,
25 beginning from inception to completion of the'

ESQUI DEPOSmON SERVICE
1~800-9449454
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Two, drafting the article or

3 revising it critically for important

4 intellectual conduct.

5 Three, final approval of the
6 version to be published authors should meet

7 conditions one, two and three."

8 Do you agree with those?
9 A. This is one set, dated 2004 and, as

10 I said, if I submitted a p¿per to a .j ournal

11 that adherés to these guid~lines, then I

12 accept it.

'I

13

14

Q. I'm asking you in general, as you
sit here today, are those appropriate

15 .standards that you endorse?
16

17

18

MS. KAPIN: Objection, overbroad,
ambiguous, relevance.

A. I have to see the context. This is

19 not the format that an investigator would be
2 0 given. These are general -- these are

21 guidelines.
22

23

24

25

Q. Do you disagree with any o£ them?

MS. KAPIN: If you could not
interrupt him. Go ahead.

A. I would have to see, for example,

ESQUI DEPOSmON SERVIæs
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if you gave me New England Journal and I

could see their signature page, then I could

tell you -- I mean I don't disagree with

these necessarily.

Q. Okay. Would you have disagreed

wi th these at any time in your academic'

career?
MS. KAPIN: Objection, vague,

overbroad, ambiguous, relevance.

A. I would have to see the context but

you are asking me -- these are standards that

have evolved over a hundred' years of

scientific research and so the standards that

existed in 1920 were not the same as the

standards today. These standards have

evolved over time.'

Q. When you were involved in the

Darsee studies
A. Yes.

Q. -- that were fraudulent, you were a

co-author, r~ght?

A. Yes.

Q. So you understood you had certain

responsibili ties to verify what was being

ESQum DEPOSITON SERVICE
1-800-9449454
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Q. Let me just ask tne straightforward
question.

A. Yes.

Q. Wi th regard to the Darsee studies
what, if any, duties and responsibilities did

you believe you had as co-author? .
A. I worked on the design of some of

the studies, I worked on their conception

design, I worked on review of the data,

"data" being the summary data, and I worked

on writing the manuscripts and helping to

revise them for publication.
Q. Did you have access to -- strike

that. Was there any data involved in that

study to which you did not have access?

A. Yes.

Q . Wha t ?

A.. The raw data.

Q. Did you ask to have access and were

foreclosed?
A. I n~ver asked for the raw data

because that' ssomething exceptionally rare
amo~g co-investigators, to ask for the source

information. What I saw and worked with was

ESQUI DEPOSmON SERVlæs
1-800-9449454
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the summary information. In other words, the

3 patient gives samples, the samples are

4 analyzed by the ,lab, there's data, the data

5 goes into a cÇJmputer -- at the time there

6 were no computers -- and put into tables and

7 charts and then created into summary

8 statistics for a paper.

9 So there's a long chain going from

10 the patient to the p~per where data gets

11 ~oved along. And investigators who are

12 co-authors, with colleagues who collect it at
13 a very early stage, at the patient stage,

\

. 14 very, very, very rarely ask fot the source
15 information.
16 Q. My question to you was really
17 simple. Did you -- were you. foreclosed from

is access to the raw data; yes or no?

19 A. I was not foreclosedr nor did I ask

20 or .have interest in the source data.
21 Q. All right. Now, this was a maj or

22 event in your life, correct?
i

23

24

25

MS. KAPIN: Obj ection,

mischaracterizing.
A. You know, I've had a lot of major

ESQUI DEPOSmON SERVICE
i~OO~944~9454
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considered me an eyesore. I was set

aside-taken off the ladder to the sky. It

was obvious there would be no promotions or

opportuni ties. n

Tha tis what you told the reporter,

right?
A. This is a newspaper article and 11m

not sure what the quote context I gave thiS.

quote, but if you can find anything

obj ecti ve, and I don i t mean a newspaper
article, from Emory University~ written to me

in any document, and you can go to the dean,

you can get all the files, that asked me to

leave I would be very shockeò.

Q. Get my question back. I didn i task
that question.

A. This is a newspaper article..

MS. KAPIN:. Doctor, you don't have

to throw out challenges to opposing

question.
A. Yesiyes.

Q. And likely will take you up, but
that wasn't the question. Can you read the. .
question and we'll take a break.

ESQUI DEPOSmON SERVICE
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said I take it you can't deny saying what's

quoted here,. right?
MS. KAPIN: Obj ection,

argumentative, mischaracterizing.
A. This is a this is a newspaper

article
MS. KAPIN: And you can take the

time to read this if you like,

Dr. Heymsfield, to get the context.

A. No, I'm just at the telling you
that.

Q. You are off my question. My

question is very simple. I take it that if
you don' trecall what you said you can't deny

that you said this, fair?

MS. KAPIN: Obj action,

argumentati ve.
A. I'm going to tell you what I see

here. There's a quote from me here, and we

know what it says. I'LL read it. "The

response was that Emory asked me to leave,"

and I told you I don't remember exactly what

I said. This is many years ago. I don't

know how accurate this quote is, but I do
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know that Emory never asked me to leave.
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Q. Based on the fact that your

3 reputation at Emory had essentially been

4 destroyed, fair?

5

6

7

MS. KAPIN: Obj ection,

argumentative, harassing.
A. You are ~aying that. I went to an

8 Ivy League School, a top tier Ivy League

9 School to leave what's considered a second

10 tier school.

11. Q. After the Darsee study the fraud

12 became public, did you receive grants at

'~J

13

14

Emory?

A. I always -- I've had grants

15 throughout my career, from the day I started
16 and I would have had grants that continued.

i 7 Nor I was never taken off any grants. I

18 continùed to get grants throughout my entire
19 year.
20 Q. Still not my question.
21 A. I think I answered it though.
22 Q. Maybe you remember, maybe you

23 don't. At Emory University, while you still

24 remained there after Darsee fraud was
25 disclosed, did you get any new grants?
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That was my question.
I can't answer that specifically,A.

4 because I've always had a flow of grants,

5 that's how I've supported myself my whole

6 life.
7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

MR. BURBIDGE: We'll go off the

record and take a break~

MS. KAPIN: Great.
MR. BURBIDGE: Thanks.

MS. VI DEOGRAPHER : The time is now

1: 15 and we're off the record.
(Recess taken. )

MS. VI DEOGRAPHER : The time is now

1: 30 . and we are back on the record.,
Q. Okay. Back on the record. I'm

17 going to finish up a couple questions and

1S then I' 11 turn the time over to Jonathan.
19 Just earlier when I was asking about

20 metaanalysis you indicated there were some

21 standards and you said give me a minute and

22 I' Ii think about it, and I bet you've done

23 that.
24

25

A. I ha ve .

Q. So what do I refer to as sort of

. .
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A. Supports some weight loss with

3 timeframes, also no studies longer than six

4 months and so on.

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

, 15

16.

MR. BURBIDGE: Thank you.. I'm

going to turn my microphone over.

Wou1"d you like to switch.

(Off-the-record discussion held.)
MS. KAPIN: Just to verify,

Mr. Emord, yesterday you filed an entry

of appearance with the court and served

it on complaint counsel

MR. EMORD: Yes.

. MS. KAPIN:-- regarding your
appearance in this matter?

MR. EMORD: That's correct.

17 EXAMINATION BY

18 MR. EMORD:

19 Q. All 'right. Dr. Heymsfield,

20 Jonathan Emard. Please to meet you.

21

22

A. Hi.

Q. I'm the attorney for Klein-Becker

23 in this proceeding. I have just a few

24 questions for you.
25 Have you ever had an instance in
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18
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20
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which you have submitted a article for

publication or have been listed as a

co-author upon the article that you did not

read in its entirety?

MS. KAPIN: Dbj ection, relevance.
A. Did not read in its entirety? You

know, like I said, I have a couple of hundred

papers that I've written and worked on so I

can't answer it as specifically as you've

asked it. Again, I would have to have a

specific example. '

Q. Well, can you conceïve of an

instance where you would have allowed an

article to be published with your name on it

that you did not read?

A. An' article with my name, that I
. didn't read?'

Q. Right.
MS. KAPIN: Let me just make my

obj ection, overbroad. Go ahead.

A. Unlikely, bat again a specific
example would be helpful.

Q. But it could have happen that you

allowed an article to be published with your

ESQUI DEPOSmON SERVlæs
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2 name on it, that you didn't read in its
3 entirety?

4

5

6

MS. KAPIN: Obj ection, overbroad.

If that's possible?Q.

A. You said "entirety" this time, but

7 you didn't say "entirety" last time and so

8 "entirety" is very specific. So it's
9 possible, yes, that an article was written

10 with my name on it, that I didn't read
11. entirely because I'm fairly focused and I

12 would have contributed and read the sections
13 that were assigned to me.

14 Q. Now, is a co-author responsible for

15 the entire article in your judgment?

16

17

18

MS. KAPIN: Objection, relevance,
overbroad.

.

A. Well, when you put your name on as

19 an author you are generally responsible for
20 the content of the article.
21

22

Q. Right.
A. But not for necessarily reading it

23 entirely.
24 Q. Now, before an article is published

25 in a peer reviewed journal, you must actually
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conserit to its publication as a co-author;

isn't that correct?

MS. KAPIN: Objection, relevance,
overbroad.
A. In modern terms, yes, modern times,

yes, _ and we've discussed that before in the
uniform requirements. You have to signa

statement to that- affect, an attestation

statement ~ But I don't think that was in

place many years ago, I can't give you the

exact chronology of evolution of. that.
But it's possible that there have

been articles written by people where names

were used fraudulently, where the

investigators didn't even know they were on

the articles, yes, it happens.

Q. Do you know of an instance where

your name appeared as a co-author on an

article that you did not co273che



(."..j
1

2 A.

Page 645

HEYMSFIELD

Did I fail to consent, in other

3 words, I knew the article. existed and I said
4 no, you can't publish it?

5 Q. You said no, you can't put my name

6 on that article?
.7

8

A.

Q.

Did I ever do that? Did ~ ever --

In advance of a publication, did

9 you ever refuse in any of the Darsee studies

10 to allow your name to be listed as a

11 co-author?

'.'\
!

.",

12

13

A. I think you said did I ever allow

my name to be listed as a co-author on the

14 Darsee papers? I think we. have t6.
15 Q.

1 6 you.
17 .

18

A.

Q.

Let me rephrase the question for

Yeah, yeah.

And unless I'm mistaken, you can

19 help me if I 'mmistaken as to the. facts and
20 circumstances here.
21

22

A.

Q.

Sure, absolutely.
But from the course of testimony

23 today I take it th~t you consented to the

24 publication of your name as a co-author on

25 each of the Darsee studi~s; is that not

ESQUI DEPosmON SERVICE
1-800-944~9454



" 1



Page 655

-'

1

2

3

HEYMSFIELD
.,"'\

¡

conduct weight loss trials.

Q.
i
Returning to a moment to your CV,

4 what was the reason you had for not incLuding

5 any of the Darsee studies onyourCV?

6 A. I talked to the dean at Emory at

7 the time and I said is it appropriate for me

8 to remove these as publications, and he said

9 ye s .
10 Q. Did you inform the Federal Trade

11 Commission counsel in advance of your expert

12 report that you would nOt include the Darsee

\
..

13

14

studies on your' CV? .

A. I informed the Federal Trade

I? Commission to the best of my recollection,

16 about the Darsee matter and other matters
17 that are in the past, that often come up in

18 trials that, you know, where I -- for people

19 trying to discredit me for one reason or

20' another. So I brought that up with them a

21 priority.
22 Q. And you were' not told to reveal

23 that information to öpposing counsel in this

24 case?

25 MS. KAPIN: Objettion. You are

ESQUI DEPOSITON SERVICE
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talking about two different things" one

is publications and the other is general

subj ect matter. So I think your
question and answer have been in cross

purposes and you are making innuendoes.

A. So could you state that again

8 having had this comment.

9

10

11

MR. EMORD: Okay. Can the court

reporter please read .the question.

(Record read.)
- -
12

13

14

A.
-- _.. _. .._. ~ .

No, I was never told not to reveal

any information as far as I'ro aware of.
Q. So let me just get this straight.

.

15 You imparted the information to FTC that you
16 were on these Darsee studies and that' you did
17 not include them on your CV;' is that correct?
18

19

20

21

MS. KAPIN: Obj ection, obj ection

mischaracterizes.
A. No.

Q. What is the accurate story? Did

22 you ever inform the FTC that 'you were on

23 studies, the Darsee studies and that they

24 were not inèi udedin your CV?
2.5 A. I've answered this several times.

.

ESQUI DEPOSmON SERVlæs
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I'll answer it again.

Q, Please.
A. I informed the FTC of all of the

matters that I considered issues that come up

in trials where attempts were made to

discredit me one way or the other, the Darsee
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a piece, Mitch.

MS. VIDEOGRAPHER: The time is 1: 58

and we're reached the enq of tape number

two.

, -
12

13

(Recess taken.)

MS. VIDEOGRAPHER: Tne time is now

2: 02 . This is tape number three and we
are back on the record.

.

Q .. Dr. Heymsfield, who. among FTC

14 counsel did you inform about the Darsee
15 studies?

.

16

17

18

MS. KAPIN: Obj ection,

characterization as to DDarsee studies.",

A. I informed the FTC about Darsee in

19 general, but I can't remëffër - specìflcaify

20 who that was. I've interacted with several
21 people at the FTC so I don't remember exactly

22 who that was.

23 Q. Did you discuss it with the lawyers

24 sitting in this room?

25 A. You know honestly I don't recall

ESQUI DEPOSmON SERVICE
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it's been oh, over a year.

But it was with lawyers for the

4 Federal Trade Commission?

5

6

7

8

9

Q.

A.

Q.

10 missed it?
11 A.

Let him answer that question?,
Yes.

You said, yes, sir I'm sorry I

I always inform people who retain

12 me as an expert about that, yes.
13 Q.

)
And when did you inform them to the

14 best of your recollection, before or èfter
15 you produced the expert report in this case?
16 A. Keep in mind that I've worked wi th

1 7 the FTC for a number of years, even prior' to

18 this case. I've _been an expert on several

19 occasions, and I've always let people know it
20 so does that answer your question?

21 Q.. No. When did you make the

22 disclosure, to the best of your recollection;
23 was it before or after your expert report was

24 prepared?

25 A. I'm going by recollection and it's

ESQum DEPOSITON SERVICE
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') always when people first call me and. ask me

3 to be an expert for them.

4 Q. All right. So it was when you were

5 first retained in this case?

6

7

A. More than likely.

Thank you, very much. One moreQ.

8 question. This is what happens with multiple

9 ¡awyers, I apologize?

.,

)

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

i 7

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

MS. KAPIN: Actually your time is
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Fraudulent Papers Stain Co"'Authors

By Rex Dalton

SAN DIEGO-Young scientists unwittingly caught up in scandals over fraudulent research have found the experience to
be a drain on their emotions and a stain on their professional careers.
Interviews with nearly a dozen researchers whose, names have been linked to some of the best-known cases of fraud
revealed that the practice of "gift authorship" has sidetracked academic careers, put federal research grants beyond
reach and thrown Into question other legitimate studies they have published. It has even limited their opportunities to
practice medicine privately.

The young researchers appear to have been exploited in part because of their nalveté, which was as glaring as their
eagerness to receive credit for published research. Although none has been accused of participating knowingly in the
scientific misconduct, their careers have become clouded by the specter of dishonesty.

Jeffrey J. Brown; now 31, was a radiology fellow in the early 1980s when he came Into contact with Robert A. Slutsky,
~ .former. member of the departments of medicine and radiology at the University of California at ~an Diego who last
~ear was found to have produced 13 fraudulent papers and 55 others that a special review committee termed
"questionable." Brown is listed êls a co-author with Slutsky on three fraudulent papers êlnd four others that have been
withdrawn.
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New York. He has been nominated for a faculty position at Columbia University.

"If I don't get it," Heymsfield said, "there will be one reason: Darsee."

John Mancini also knows the anguish of being associated with a researcher whose work has been questioned. "It has
been a soul-wrenching experience for those of us who were junior researchers," said Mancini, 34, now a cardiologist at
the Veterans Administration Medical Center in Ann Arbor, Mich. "Basically, three years of effort were wiped out. It has
an effect on my brain, my psyche and my soul."

Mancini came in contact with Slutsky as a research fellow from 1980 to '83 at the University of California at San Diego.
He is listed as a co-author on one fraudulent paper and seven questionable reports in which Slutsky was the lead
author.

'Is Your Work Real?'

Mancini remembers vividly the call from a university official that was his first indication of a problem with Slutsky's
work. The inquiry came two years after he had left San Diego.
"He said, 'You wrote such and such paper. Was that study performed?' " Mancini recalled. "It was like: 'Hello, how are
you? Is this study real?' I said, of course I did it."

But the question started him thinking. "It really knocked me for a loop, psychologically. I didn't know what to do but
cooperate," said Mancini. "I had to reevaluate my whole experience in San Diego. But that was my research
experience. "

Gideon Strich, completing a residency in radiology at the University of California at Irvine, became embroiled in the
Slutsky affair when he was given "gift authorship" for two published articles. Both articles were subsequently
determined to be fraudulent by a university committee that investigated the allegations.

"I wasn't involved in the research," Strich said, recalling that his signature was forged on documents giving permission
for his name to be used as a co-author. Noting that "everyone shared authorship" for group projects, Strich thought at
the time that Slutsky was simply paying him back for his dedicated work in the lab. Strich left UC San Diego before the
two reports were published.

"I thought, 'Isn't this nice.' I wrote papers he had little to do with, but his name appeared on them. I thought he was
recognizing that I did a lot of work for him. I didn't realize what a favor he had done me-landing me in a great hole of
mud," saidStrich.

Despite the stain, Strich has been accepted for a radiology fellowship. But he expects eventually to enter private
practice.

Revising His CV

Psychologist Salvatore Cullari is co-author of a half-dozen research papers with Stephen E. Breuning. The papers date
from 1979-80, when both men were staff psychologists at the Coidwater Regional Center for Developmental
Disabilities in Michigan.

A draft report in March prepared by a panel assembled by the National Institute of Mental Health alleges Breuning
iever performed some studies he wrote up and published in the early 1980s on how drug treatments affect retarded
children. Breuning, now an administrator at a facility in western Pennsylvania, has denied any impropriety.

Cullari said the allegations have prompted him to remove from his vita two questioned studies he did with Breuning. "I

http://www.the-scientist.com/1987/511811/2/printerfrendly 4/2/05
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Declaration of Steven B. Heymsfield, M.D.

I declare under penalty of perjur, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. Paragraph 1746, that, to the best
of my recollectio~ the following is tre and correct:

1. My name is Steven B. Heysfield. M.D. Since November 1, 2004, i have selVed as
Executive Director of Clinical Research, Metabolism, for Merck Reseach Laboratories.
I also serve as a Visiting Scientist at St. Luke'saRoosevelt Hospital which is affliated
with Columbia University. Previously I selVed as Deputy Director oftha New York
Obesity Researh Center and also held the positions of 

Professor of Medicine at

Columbia University College of Physicians and Surgeons, and Doctor of Medicine, St.

Luke's-Roosevelt HospitaL.

2. I have been retained by Complaint Counsel as an expert to offer testimony in ths case.

3. Afer I 
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8. While at Emory, I submitted my CV to the Dean ofthe Emory 
medical school every year

as par of my anual performance review. After the Daree papers were withdrwn from
publication, I asked the Dean whether it was appropriate to remove these as publjcations
from my CV and the Dean said that it was. Therefore, I believed it appropriate to
withdraw all of the Darsee papers included on my own list of publications.

9. A$ a scientist and medical doctor in my field, I do not regard papers that have been

:retracted and withdrawn from publication to be published studies. Brrors and waste of
resources could result ifmedical researchers relied on withdrawn papers.

10. The Dean and the recruitment committee of 
the Columbia University College of

Physicians and Surgeons reviewed my CV and professiona qualifications as a mattr of
course prior to my receivig an appointment to the University. They were fully aware of
the Daree mattr and the consequences thereof;.inc1uding al of 

his many withdrawn

papers. They did not question the absence of these papers on my CV.

11. Consequently, durg the fall 2004 meetig with Complaint Counsel I did not mention
that John Darsee reported the fabricated data in papers that were withdrawn from
publication. I did not state tht these papers were not listed on my CV because the
question of whether the papers withdrawn from publication should have been listed on
my curriculum vitae has not arisen in previous cases in which I have testified.

12. Durg the time I was at Emory, some twenty five years ago, I was a member of the
medical faculty. John Darsee was a medical resident. He was not my employee and I
was not his supervisor. Nor did I evaluate or grade him. Although I was sometimes privy
to summaries of data that Daree had collected, I was usually not privy to the underlying
raw data and the maner in which it was collected. I never fàbricated any data nor was I
aware of Dr. Darsee's fabrication of data until years later.

i 3. Other than the fall 2004 meetig with Complaint Counsel, I recall no other

communcations about this topic in the presence of Complaint Counel until August 30,
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